STATE OF FLORIDA
FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION

In Re: Douglas Mayorga Case No.: FEC 15-201
/
TO: Douglas Mayorga Orlando Lopez
8720 NW 33rd Street 10355 SW 3 Street
Apt. 171 Sweetwater, FL 33174

Doral, FL 33172

NOTICE OF HEARING (INFORMAL HEARING)

A hearing will be held in this case before the Florida Elections Commission on, November 16, 2016 at 8:30 am, or as
soon thereafter as the parties can be heard, at the following location: Senate Office Building, 404 South Monroe Street,
Room 110-S, Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Failure to appear in accordance with this notice will constitute a waiver of your right to participate in the hearing.
Continuances will be granted only upon a showing of good cause.

This hearing will be conducted pursuant to Section 106.25, Florida Statutes, which governs your participation as
follows:

If you are the Respondent, you may attend the hearing, and you or your attorney will have 5 minutes to present your
case to the Commission. However, some cases (including those in which consent orders or recommendations for no probable
cause are being considered) may be decided by an en masse vote and, unless you request to be heard or the Commission
requests that your case be considered separately on the day of the hearing, your case will not be individually heard.

If you are the Complainant, you may attend the hearing, but you will not be permitted to address the Commission. In
addition, some cases (including those in which consent orders or recommendations for no probable cause are being considered)
may be decided by an en masse vote and, unless the Respondent requests to be heard or the Commission requests that the case
be considered separately on the day of the hearing, the case will not be individually heard.

If you are an Appellant, and you have requested a hearing, you may attend the hearing, and you or your attorney will
have 5 minutes to present your case to the Commission.

Please be advised that both confidential and public cases are scheduled to be heard by the Florida Elections
Commission on this date. As an Appellant, Respondent or Complainant in one case, you will not be permitted to attend the
hearings on other confidential cases.

The Commission will electronically record the meeting. Although the Commission’s recording is considered the
official record of the hearing, the Respondent may provide, at his own expense, a certified court reporter to also record the
hearing.

If you require an accommodation due to a disability, contact Donna Ann Malphurs at (850) 922-4539 or by mail at 107
West Gaines Street, The Collins Building, Suite 224, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, at least 5 days before the hearing.

See further instructions on the reverse side.

Amy McKeever Toman
Executive Director

Florida Elections Commission
November 1, 2016

NOH
FEC # 15-201



Please refer to the information below for further instructions related to your particular hearing:

If this is a hearing to consider an appeal from an automatic fine, the Filing Officer has imposed a fine
on you for your failure to file a campaign treasurer’s report on the designated due date and, by filing an appeal,
you have asked the Commission to consider either (1) that the report was in fact timely filed; or (2) that there
were unusual circumstances that excused the failure to file the report timely. You are required to prove your
case. If the Commission finds that the report was filed timely or that there were unusual circumstances that
excused the failure, it may waive the fine, in whole or in part. The Commission may reduce a fine after
considering the factors in Section 106.265, Florida Statutes. If the Commission finds that the report was not
timely filed and there were no unusual circumstances, the fine will be upheld.

If this is a hearing to consider a consent order before a determination of probable cause has

been made, the Commission will decide whether to accept or reject the consent order. If the Commission
accepts the consent order, the case will be closed and become public. If the Commission rejects the consent
order or does not make a decision to accept or deny the consent order, the case will remain confidential, unless
confidentiality has been waived.

If this is a hearing to consider a consent order after a determination of probable cause has been

made, the Commission will decide whether to accept or reject the consent order. If the Commission accepts
the consent order, the case will be closed. If the Commission rejects the consent order or does not make a
decision to accept or deny the consent order, the Respondent will be entitled to another hearing to determine if
the Respondent committed the violation(s) alleged.

If this is a probable cause hearing, the Commission will decide if there is probable cause to believe that
the Respondent committed a violation of Florida’s election laws. Respondent should be prepared to explain
how the staff in its recommendation incorrectly applied the law to the facts of the case. Respondent may not
testify, call others to testify, or introduce any documentary or other evidence at the probable cause hearing.
The Commission will only decide whether Respondent should be charged with a violation and, before the
Commission determines whether a violation has occurred or a fine should be imposed, Respondent will have an
opportunity for another hearing at which evidence may be introduced.

If this is an informal hearing, it will be conducted pursuant Sections 120.569 and 120.57(2), Florida
Statutes; Chapter 28 and Commission Rule 2B-1.004, Florida Administrative Code. At the hearing, the
Commission will decide whether the Respondent committed the violation(s) charged in the Order of Probable
Cause. The Respondent will be permitted to testify. However, the Respondent may not call witnesses to testify.

Respondent may argue why the established facts in the Staff Recommendation do not support the violations
charged in the Order of Probable Cause. At Respondent’s request, the Commission may determine whether
Respondent’s actions in the case were willful. The Respondent may also address the appropriateness of the
recommended fine. If Respondent claims that his limited resources make him unable to pay the statutory fine,
he must provide the Commission with written proof of his financial resources at the hearing. A financial
affidavit form is available from the Commission Clerk.

NOH
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STATE OF FLORIDA
FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION

Florida Elections Commission,

Petitioner,
Case No.: FEC 15-201
V.
Douglas Mayorga,
Respondent.
/
ORDER OF PROBABLE CAUSE

THIS MATTER was heard by the Florida Elections Commission (Commission) at its
regularly scheduled meeting on November 17, 2016, in Tallahassee, Florida.

Based on the Complaint, Report of Investigation, Staff’s Recommendation, and oral
statements (if any) made at the probable cause hearing, the Commission finds that there is
probable cause to charge Respondent with the following violation(s):

Count 1:

During his 2015 campaign for Mayor of Sweetwater, Florida,
Respondent violated Section 106.143(1)(a), Florida Statutes, when
Respondent failed to include a disclaimer on his Vote! Mayorga

for Mayor Political Advertisement.

DONE AND ORDERED by the Florida Elections Commission on November 17, 2016.

M. Scott Thomas, Chairman
Florida Elections Commission

P:/Order of Probable Cause.docx (07/14)
FEC Case # 15-201
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Copies furnished to:

Eric M. Lipman, General Counsel
Douglas Mayorga, Respondent
Orlando Lopez, Complainant

 NOTICE OF RIGHT TO AHEARING

As the Respondent, you may elect to resolve this case in several ways. First, you may elect to
resolve this case by consent order where you and Commission staff agree to resolve the
violation(s)s and agree to the amount of the fine. The consent order is then presented to the
Commission for its approval. To discuss a consent order, contact the FEC attorney identified in
the Order of Probable Cause.

Second, you may request an informal hearing held before the Commission, if you do not dispute
any material fact in the Staff Recommendation. You have 30 days from the date the Order of
Probable Cause is filed with the Commission to request such a hearing. The date this order was
filed appears in the upper right-hand corner of the first page of the order. At the hearing, you
will have the right to make written or oral arguments to the Commission concerning the legal
issues related to the violation(s) and the potential fine. At the request of Respondent, the
Commission will consider and determine willfulness at an informal hearing. Otherwise, live
witness testimony is unnecessary.

Third, you may request a formal hearing held before an administrative law judge in the Division
of Administrative Hearings (DOAH), if you dispute any material fact in the Staff
Recommendation. You have 30 days from the date the Order of Probable Cause is filed with the
Commission to request such a hearing. The date this order was filed appears in the upper right-
hand corner of the first page of the order. At the hearing, you will have the right to present
evidence relevant to the violation(s) listed in this order, to cross-examine opposing witnesses, to
impeach any witness, and to rebut the evidence presented against you.

If you do not elect to resolve the case by consent order or request a formal hearing at the DOAH
or an informal hearing before the Commission within 30 days of the date this Order of Probable
Cause is filed with the Commission, the case will be sent to the Commission for a formal or
informal hearing, depending on whether the facts are in dispute. The date this order was filed
appears in the upper right-hand corner of the first page of the order.

To request a hearing, please send a written request to the Commission Clerk, Donna Ann
Malphurs. The address of the Commission Clerk is 107 W. Gaines Street, Collins Building,
Suite 224, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050. The telephone number is (850) 922-4539. The
Clerk will provide you with a copy of Chapter 28-106, Florida Administrative Code, and other
applicable rules upon request. No mediation is available.

P:/Order of Probable Cause.docx (07/14)
FEC Case # 15-201




STATE OF FLORIDA
FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION

In Re: Douglas Mayorga Case No.: FEC 15-201
/

STAFF RECOMMENDATION FOLLOWING INVESTIGATION

Pursuant to Section 106.25(4)(c), Florida Statutes, undersigned staff counsel files this
wiitten recommendation for disposition of the complaint in this case recommending that there is
probable cause to charge Respondent with violating Section 106.143(1)(a), Florida Statutes.
Based upon a thoiough teview of the Report of Investigation submitted on January 28, 2016, the
following facts and law support this staff recommendation. "

1 On February 2, 2015, the Florida Elections Commission (“Commission”) received
a complaint from Orlando Lopez (“Complainant”) alleging that Douglas Mayorga
(“Respondent™) violated Chapter 106, Florida Statutes.

2. Respondent was a first time candidate for Mayor of Sweetwater, Florida, in the
May 12, 2015 municipal election  Complainant defeated Respondent in the election.
(Attachment A)

3. On or about April 9, 2015, the Executive Director sent notification to Respondent
that Commission staff would investigate the following section of law:

Section 106.143(1)(a), Florida Statutes: As alleged in the
complaint, Douglas Mayorga, candidate for Mayor of the City of
Sweetwater, distributed a political advertisement that contained
express advocacy but did not include a proper disclaimer

4 Complainant attached a political advertisement card to his complaint alleging
Respondent circulated the card during the campaign and the political advertisement card failed to
include a disclaimer. (ROI Exhibit 1)'

5. The front side of the political advertisement card stated, “Vote! Mayorga for
Mayor, City of Sweetwater” (“Vote!l Mayorga for Mayor Political Advertisement”). The back
side of the political advertisement card appears to be messages to voters. There is no political
advertisement disclaimer on either side of the card. (ROI Exhibit 1)

' The Report of Investigation shall be referred to herein as “ROI”

Staft Recommendation FEC 13-201 1




6. In his Pebwaﬁy 23,. 2014 'resp(')hse to the complaint, Respondent stated that his - -

campaign was in its early stages and had not yet developed any printed materials for public use.
Respondent added that his campaign had made diafts for possible later campaign materials
Respondent claimed that Complainant submitted a draft of a flyer that Respondent showed to
family and friends to get their feedback. (ROI Exhibit 3, page 1)

7. During a January 15, 2016 telephone call, the City Cletk told Investigator Wade
that candidates do not receive physical copies of Florida’s election laws and the Candidate
Handbook. Ms Schmidt stated that candidates are referred to the Division of Election’s website
to download the materials. (Attachment B, Phone Log Entry 17)

8. During her investigation, Investigator Wade made four unsuccessful attempts to
speak with Respondent. (Attachment B, Phone Log Entries 10-13)

9. Based on the information above, it appears Respondent failed to include a
disclaimer on a political advertisement card.

10.  “Probable Cause” is defined as reasonable ground of suspicion supported by
circumstances sufficiently strong to wartant a cautious person in the belief that the person has
committed the offense charged. Schmitt v. State, 590 So.2d 404, 409 (Fla 1991) Probable
cause exists where the facts and circumstances, of which an [investigator] has reasonably
trustworthy information, are sufficient in themselves for a reasonable man to teach the
conclusion that an offense has been committed Department of Highway Safety and Motor
Vehicles v Favino, 667 So 2d 305, 309 (Fla. 1% DCA 1995).

11.  The above facts show that Respondent was a first time candidate for Mayor of
Sweetwater, Florida, in the May 12, 2015 municipal election. During his campaign, Respondent
circulated a political advertisement card that that did not contain a political advertisement
disclaimer.

Based upon the information above, I recommend that the Commission find probable
cause to charge the Respondent with the following violation:

Count 1:
During his 2015 campaign for Mayor of Sweetwater, Florida,
Respondent violated Section 106.143(1)(a), F'lorida Statutes, when

Respondent failed to include a disclaimer on his Vote! Mayorga
for Mayor Political Advertisement,

Staff Recommendation FEC 13-201 2




Respectfully submitted on March i, 2016.

g:"“e_/‘

Eric M. Lipman
General Counsel

Amy Toman
Executive Direstor

Staff Recommendation FEC 13-201 ' 3
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APPOINTMENT OF CAMPAIGN TREASURER
AND DESIGNATION OF CAMPAIGN
DEPOSITORY FOR CANDIDATES
{Section 106 021(1), F S)

{PLEASE PRINT OR TYFE)

NOTE: This form must be on file with the qua!ifyiﬁg
officer before opening the campaign account.

OFFICE USE ONLY

16Jmip g 20 i

16 ZUTE

(\

1. CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX(ES):

Redfiingto.Change: ] TreasurerDeputy. £} Depository [ Office. [T 2arty |

(7180 ) 260 ~ 1965 d"“ﬁlds@mﬂ_‘f‘@“{"m%wm

-Mmmngof.m
2. Name of Candidate (in this order: First, Middle, Last) 3 Ad)dress {include post offica box or street, cily, state, p
code
GO&G LA Ay OR
DUUGLAS  MAYORGA 567w ST
4 Telephone 5 E.mall address Al E6 3374

6 Office sought (include district, cireuit, group number)

M Ay a R,

7 ¥ 2 candidate for a gonpartisan office, check if

applicable:
I7] Myintentis to run as a Write-In candidate.

8.1 a candidate for a parfisan office, check block and fill in name of party as applicable: My intentistorun asa

Party candidate

[J witetn [ Noparty Affiiation

(0 Regumctcan

9 ! have abpointed the following person fo act as my

E Campaign Treasurer || Deputy Treasurer

10 Name of Treasurer or Deputy Treasurer
Mpata LoaSite A

11 Malling Address
S & 78K) (ST,

12 Telephone
(786 Y260~ /577 2

13, City 14, County
A4 LARA) P RAve

15 State
Fi

17 E-mail address

16, Zip Cede
freasverl meyoma foe mesos

33179

18 I have designated the foliowing bank as my

"[&]  Primary Depository 1M Secondary Depository

19, Name of Bank
CiTLBANKL

20. Address
7795 W FPlaGisp a4,

22. County

21 City
D ACE

MiAMMY

24 Zip Code

23. State
3314

Fl

J

UNDER PENALTIES OF PERJURY, 1 DECLARE THAT | EAVE READ THE FOREGOING FORM FOR APPOINTMENT OF CAMPAIGN TREASURER AND
DESIGNATION OF GAMPAIGN DEPOSITORY AND THAT THE FACTS STATED IN 1T ARE 'ERUE

25 Date

"x d.»-.\-”*“lw \S Z/O)S

26 Signature of Candidate

X T == —

/“’ /’

oy i A

o
o

27
, MALIA  Lpaisie A

Treasurer's Acceptance of Appointment {fill in iha‘ﬁanks and check the approﬁate biock)

+ do hereby accept the appointment

designated above as:

X

' {Please Prnt or Type Name)
¢} Campaign Treasurer

D Deputy Treasurer.

SIgnatﬁre of cammgn Treasufer or Deputy Treasurer

Resle 4520004, EACiconme o -




Elections

2700 NW 87th Avenue

Miarni, Florida 33172

- ¥ 305-499-8683" F305-499-8547
TTY 305-499-8480

- MIAMIDAD!

migmitdade.gov

CERTIFICATION

STATE OF FLORIDA;
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE)

|, Penelope Townsley, Supervisor of Elections of Miami-Dade County, Florida, do
hereby certify that the attached is a true and correct copy of the Official Resuits for
the municipal offices listed below in the Sweetwater General Municipal Election
conducted on May 12, 20185:

MAYOR
COMMISSIONER — GROUP 5
COMMISSIONER —~ GROUP &
COMMISSIONER ~ GROUP 7

WITNESS MY HAND AND

OFFICIAL SEAL, AT MIAMI, A
MIAMI-DADE GOUNTY, FLORIDA, Pénelogh Townsiey

Superyisor of Elections
ON THIS 15" DAY OF May, 2015 Miami-Dade County
Enclosure

ATTACHMENT A ey




SUMMARY REPT-GROUP DETALL

RUN DATE:05/15/15 10:27 AM

PRECINCTS COUNTED {OF 6)
REGISTERED VOTERS - TOTAL
BALLOTS CAST - TOTAL.
VOTER TURNOUT - TOTAL

MAYQR CITY:SWEETRATER
Vote for 1
Deborah Centeno

Jose M. Diaz (Candidate Disquaiified)

Orlando Lopez ‘
Deuglas Mayorga
Total .
Over Votes .
Under Votes .

COMMISSIONER - GROUP & CITY:SWEETWATER
Vote for 1
Jose M. Guerra.
Tdania Lianto
Total
Over Votes
Under Yotes .

COMMISSIONER - GROUP 6 CITY:SWEETWATER
Vote for 1
Prisca Barveto.
Elsa Thompson .
Total .
Over Yotes .
Under Votes .

COMMISSTONER - GROUP 7 CITY:SWEETWATER
Vote for 1
Saul Diaz

Manuel Duasso .

Total .

Over Voltes .

Under Votes .

OFFICIAL GEMERAL ELECTION
SWEETWATER, FLORIDA

MAY 12, 2015
TOTAL. VOTES % ED 055
6 100 00
9 057
2.177 1,040
24.04
598  35.60 384
0 0
3% 5571 425
46 868 72
1,680 882
15 1
482 157
475 47 8 459
1,064 5218 503
2 039 962
5 1
133 77
1189 5673 514
834 4327 450
2.043 964
8 2
126 74
994 48 39 496
1060 E161 479
2054 97%
7 2
116 - 83

L= - A e I o} [ o R e B o N o} ==l el

o oD

ABSENTER

1,136

515

644
434
1.078

82

AG7
581
1,078
5

53

OFFICIAL RESULTS

" REPORT-ELAZA

PROV

L=l =l = o Lo B B - L= R e e ==

[l =l e =
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WFLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION
- PHONE LOG
Case No.: FEC 15-201

Respondent: Douglas Mayorga

Complainant: Otlando Lopez

Date and time: June 23, 2015 @ 4:38 p.m.
Name: Trelvis D. Randolph, Esquire
Phone #: 305.350.5332

Summary: I telephoned and spoke with Respondent’s attoiney We discussed this case ~
with out offer of a minor-violation consent order (MVCO) for the lack of a disclaimer on
what appeats to have been a double-sided flier handout. We also touched on two other
matters pertaining to other issues under our review. [ advised that legal sufficiency
determinations will have to be made in the other two areas. [ explained that once that has
been completed, he will know, specifically, our initial assessment on each of the other
matters.

'T suggested that the three separate matters could then be discussed with one of our staff
attorneys for possible settlement Counsel advised me that he would be interested in
settling the matters provided that any fine would be commensurate with the offense

I asked Mr Randolph for good times to teach him by telephone. Counsel advised me that
when he is not in court, he is generally at his law office from 8:00 in the momning to 7:00 in
the evening.

Mzr. Randolph advised me that his schedule, in the near term, is as follows: He will be in
his law office all day this Friday, June 26, 2015 On Monday, June 29, 2015, counsel will
be in court during the morning howrs; he plans to spend the entite afteinoon in his law
office.

Memo to File? No

Entered by: dbf.

Date and time: 10/29/15; 11:50 am

Name: Respondent

Phone #: called for Etic Lipman

Summary: Respondent telephoned the office to speak with Mr. Lipman. I informed
Respondent that Mr. Lipman is away from the office and he stated that he wanted to let
Mr, Lipman know his circumstances in not being able to pay the consent order fine by the
October 30, 2015 deadline. Respondent stated that he needed more time to pay the '

I explained to Respondent that since he has an attorney of record (Trelvis Randolph), that

it is improper for staffto speak to him directly about this case Respondent persisted to tell
me that he could pay the monies due by the fitst week of January 2016.

ATTACHMENT & | pue
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18.

19,

20.

21,

22

™OUNANT £19/M01%

Entered by: MBW

Date and time: January 19,2016 @ 10:09 am’

Name: Maiie Schmidt, City Clerk

Phone #: 305-455-6604

Summary: [ called Ms. Schmidt regarding Respondent’s CTRs. There was no answer; I
left a message on her voice mail

Memo to File? No

Entered by: MBW

Date and time: Januaty 19, 2016 @ 10:28 am.

Name: Marie Schmidt, City Clerk

Phone #: 305-455-6604

Summary: Ms Schmidt tetined my call. 1 asked if Respondent’s CTRs were available
online. She stated that they are not. She stated that she would scan the CTRs and email
them to me.

Memo to File? No

Entered by: MBW

Date and time: January 20, 2016 @ 12:42 p.m.

Name: Marie Schmidt, City Clerk

Phone #: 305-455-6604

Summary: Ms. Schmidt called and stated that she had sent the CTRs  She stated she did
not send the TR; appatently it has been misplaced. She stated that R did not have a lot of
money. he didn’t have money to pay the qualifying fee, he qualified by petition

Memo to File? No

Entered by: MBW

Date and time: Januvary 21,2016 @ 1:35 pm.

Name: Flyer Studios, R’s printer

Phone #: 1-855-333-5937

Summary: [ called the printer to query about whether Respondent approved the ad before
they printed it. (This was the printer listed on R’s CTRs.) I spoke with Larty Reyes. He
stated that they offer design and printing for advertisement; however, they did not design
R’s ads. He stated that R’s presented the ads camera ready and they just did the printing
He stated that they printed some flyers, cards and a banner for Respondent. He stated that
he would check his files and send me a copy of the art work 1 agreed to send him an email
requesting the artwotk.

Memo to File? No

Entered by: MBW

Date and time: Janvary 22, 2016 @ 137 pm.

Name: Larry Reyes, Flyer Studios

Phone #: 1-855-333-5937

Summary: I cailed Mr Reyes to acknowledge teceiving his email and to ask about the
other ads he printed. He stated that he only printed the two ads in the email. He stated that
Respondent may have published additional ads but they only printed those two He stated

ATTACHMENT 8 page ¥



I suggested Respondent contact his attorney and have his attorney contact Mr Lipman to
- discuss potential modification of the consent order due date.

Memo to File? Yes — please see email to Eric Lipman and Margie Wade dated 10/29/15 @ -

12:03 pm.
Entered by: DMalphurs

3. Date and time: October 29,2015 @ 12: 21 pm.
Name: Trelvis Randolph, R’s attorney
Phone #: 305-350-5332
Summary: I called Mr. Randolph regarding the telephone call his client made to the
Commission Clerk There was no answer; I did not leave a message.
Memo to File? No
Entered by: MBW

4. Date and time: October 29,2015 @ 2: 27 pm
Name: Trelvis Randolph, R’s attorney
Phone #: 305-350-5332
Summary: [ called Mr. Randolph 1egarding the telephone call his client made to the
Commission Cletk Thete was no answer; | left a message.
Memo to File? No
Entered by: MBW

5. Date and time: October 29, 2015 @ 2: 32 am.

Name: Trelvis Randolph, R’s attorney

Phone #: 3035-350-5332

Summary: Mt Randolph returned my call He stated that he understood that the total

fine was He stated that his client stated that he call the FEC and got an extension

until January 1 explained that his client did not get an extension and if the case retuins for

investigation; thete is no guarantee that the fine will remain at - I explained that the
for the PPC CO, and the deadline is tomorrow. I 1eiterated that the fine

would settle all three cases. He stated that he would call his client back and call me back.

Tagieed.

Memo to File? No

Entered by: MBW

6  Date and time: October 29,2015 @ 2:47pm
Name: Trelvis Randolph, R’s attorney
Phone #: 305-350-5332
Summary: Mi Randolph called me back He stated that he had discussed the matter with
his client and explained everything to his client. He stated that his client stated that he
cannot pay the fine at this time. Mr Randolph stated that he would not be involved
in the case past this point. I asked if he could send a written statement that he is
withdrawing as the attorney and he agreed
Memo to File? No
Entered by: MBW

7 Date and time: November 16,2015 @ 2:49 pm.
Name: Complainant

ATTACHMENT® foge >
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Phone #: 305-389-3200
~Summary: 1 .called Complainant to introduce myself as the investigator assigned to the

case and to query whether he had any addition information. He did not answer; I'lefta

message on his voice mail.
Memo to File? No
Entered by: MBW

8. Date and time: November 16,2015 @ 3:29 pm.
Name: Complainant
Phone #: 305-389-3200
Summary: Complainant returned my call. He stated that the first ad was in the local
newspaper. The second was left on the counter of a local store and he picked it up. He
stated he did not recall it he got the thitd ad at a later date. He stated that he filed the
complaints as he got the ads  He stated that he would check his recotds for the dates he
1eceived the ads and call me back on Wednesday.
Memo to File? No
Entered by: MBW

9. Date and time: November 18, 2015 @ 12:11 pm.
Name: Marie Schmidt, Sweetwater City Clerk
Phone #: 305-221-0411
Summary: [ called Ms Schmidt to inform her that I was sending the Affidavit of FO to
her via email. She stated that she had just received the email. She stated that she would
pull the information and get it back to me as soon as possible.
Memo to File? No
Entered by: MBW

10. Date and time: January 11,2016 @ 2:50 pm.
Name: Respondent
Phone #: 786-260-1965
Summary: A gentleman answered the phone. I asked for Douglas Mayorga He stated
“you have the wrong number” and hung up the phone. (This is the contact number listed
on Respondent’s campaign advertisements )
Memo to File? No
Entered by: MBW

11.  Date and time: January 11,2016 @ 3:41 p.m
Name: Respondent
Phone #: 305-620-5690 (from Anywho com)
Summary: I ieached a recording stating the number has been disconnected or is no longex
in service (Also checked Switchboard com and ReferencelUSA .com with no 1esults.)
Memo to File? No
Entered by: MBW

12. Date and time: January 14,2016 @ 8:49 am
Name: Respondent
Phone #: 786-260-1965

ATTACHMENT # puge 3
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13

14.

15

16.

17

Summary: I called again to see if 1 would get a different tesponse. A gentleman

answeted the phone. -1 asked for Douglas. Mayoiga = He stated “you have the wiong

number” and hung up the phone. (This is the contact number listed on Respondent’s
campaign advertisements )

Memo to File? No

Entered by: MBW

Date and time: January 14,2016 @ 8:51 am.

Name: Respondent

Phone #: 786-260-1572

Summary: [ called to discuss the ads at issue. I1eceived a busy signal. 1 waited a few
minutes and called back; I still received a busy signal.

Memo to File? No

Entered by: MBW

Date and time: January 15,2016 @ 9:05 am.

Name: Marie Schmidt, City Clerk

Phone #: 305-455-6604

Summary: I called Ms. Schmidt regarding the Affidavit of Filing Officer that had not
been returmed. There was no answer; I left a message on her voice mail.

Memo to File? No

Entered by: MBW

Date and time: January 15,2016 @ 10:03 a.m

Name: Marie Schmidt, City Clerk

Phone #: 305-455-6604

Summary: 1 called Ms. Schmidt regarding the Affidavit of Filing Officer that had not
been 1eturned. There was no answer; 1 left a message on her voice mail

Memo to File? No

Entered by: MBW

Date and time: January 15,2016 @ 11:17 am

Name: Carmen Garcia, City Clerk’s office

Phone #: 305-455-6604

Summary: Ms. Garcia teturned the call on behalf of Ms. Schmidt regarding the Affidavit
of Filing Officer. She stated that she would email the information to me later today.
Memo to File? No

Entered by: MBW

Date and time: January 15, 2016 @ 1:55 p.m.

Name: Marie Schmidt, City Clerk

Phone #: 305-455-6604

Summary: I called Ms. Schmidt regarding the Affidavit of Filing Officer She marked
“N/A” for giving the candidate a copy of the Election Laws and the Candidate Handbook.
I asked if “N/A” meant that the candidate did not receive copies She explained that the
candidates do not receive physical copies but they ate referred to the Division of Elections
website to download the materials.

Memo to File? No

VAN (11N
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that he has the invoices and could send them but he would need a wriften request. [ agreed
-to send him an email requesting the documents

Memo to File? No

Entered by: MBW

ATTACHMENT 8 page 6
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FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION
- REPORT. OF INVESTIGATION
Case No.: FEC 15-201

Respondent: Douglas Mayorga
Counsel for Respondent: None

Complainant: Orlande Lopez
Counsel for Complainant: None

On February 2, 2015, the Florida Elections Commission received a sworn complaint
alleging that Respondent violated Chapter 106, Florida Statutes. Commission staff investigated
whether Respondent violated the following statute:

Section 106.143(1)(a), Florida Statutes, failure of a candidate who
made an expenditure for and published a political advertisement
before the election to prominently mark the advertisement with the
required disclaimer.

L Preliminary Information:

L. Respondent was a candidate for the office of Mayor for the City of Sweetwater.
There were three candidates vying for the office Respondent and Complainant were opponents.
Respondent finished thitd; he received 8 69% of the vote.

2. Initially, Respondent was tepresented by Trelvis D. Randolph!.  Counsel !
subsequently withdrew from the case
3 Complainant was a candidate for Mayor of Sweetwater in the May 12, 2015

municipal election. There was no incumbent candidate in the race Complainant won; he
received 55.71 % of the vote. Prior to the 2015 election, Complainant served as Vice-Mayor of
Sweetwater, Florida.

1. Alleged Violation of Section 106.143(1)(a), Florida Statutes:

4 I investigated whether Respondent violated this section of the elections laws when
he published a political advertisement that did not contain the required disclaimer.

5. Complainant submitted a campaign flyer with the complaint According to
Complainant, Respondent distributed campaign flyers that did not contain the required
disclaimer. The flyer reads, “VOTE Mayorga for Mayor City of Sweetwater A fresh start ... A
Clean City. ” The flyer does not contain a disclaimer To review the flyer, refer to Exhibit 1.

6. In a separate mailing, Complainant provided a palm card® distributed by
Respondent’s campaign. The palm card reads, “This 12 May 2015 Vote for Douglas Mayorga
Mayor of Sweetwater.. ” The palm card contained a disclaimer that reads,  “Political

Advertisement paid for and approved by Douglas Mayoiga for Mayor of Sweetwater.” To
review the palm card, refer to Exhibit 2.

'Mr Randolph represented Respondent during the negotiations for a pre-probable cause consent order

2 This ad was not at issue in this case.
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7. During a telephone interview on November 16, 2015, Complainant stated that he
..believed the ad at issue was published in a local newspaper. He could not recall any additional
information about the flyer When asked about the palm caid, he stated he did not recall when or
how he received the palm card.

8 Respondent stated in his written response to the complaint that his campaign had
not distributed any advertisements at the time Complainant allegedly saw the advettisement. He
stated that the flyer that was submitted with the complaint was one of the drafts that he had given
to family and filends to get their feedback. Respondent stated that he left a copy of the flyer at
the Don Pan Bakery for the manager to review Respondent speculated that Complainant
ptobably saw the flyer thete. (There are multiple locations of Don Pan Bakeries in the Miami
area; Respondent did not specify which bakery or what was the name of the manager. All
attempts to contact Respondent werte unsuccessful?) To review Respondent’s written statement,
refer to Exhibit 3.

9 Respondent provided a copy of another advertisement. The advertisement reads,
“..Vote For Douglas Mayorga Mayor of Sweetwater” The disclaimer reads, “Political
Advertisement paid for and approved by Douglas Mayorga for Mayor of Sweetwater” To
teview the advertisement, refer to Exhibit 4.

10. I called Lany Reyes, Flyer Studios, the printer listed on Respondent’s campaign
reports.  He acknowledged that they printed flyers, cards and a banner for Respondent’s
campaign. He stated that they did not design the advertisements; Respondent provided camera
ready copies and they printed the advertisements. I requested copies of the invoices from Mr.
Reyes to show the dates the ads were printed but did not receive copies of the invoices

11.  No record of Respondent having previously violated this section of the election
laws was found

III. FEC History:
12, There are two additional cases filed against Respondent by the same Complainant.

Conclusion:

13 Because 1 did not have any success in contacting Respondent by telephone
previously, I made a final attempt to contact him by sending an email to the email address listed
on his DS-DE 9. The email was returned as “undeliverable ” To review the email, refer to
Exhibit 5.

14, Ms. Marie Schmidt, Sweetwater City Clerk, served as the filing officer for
Respondent’s campaign. Ms. Schmidt stated that Respondent was a first-time candidate.
According to Ms. Schmidt, candidates are not given a physical copy of the Election Laws or the
Candidate Handbook; however, they are given a copy of the Candidate Elections Calendar. The
Calendar contains important dates and a statement that refers the candidate to the Division of
Elections website to download the Candidate Campaign Handbook and the State Election Laws.
To review the Candidate Elections Calendar, 1efer to Exhibit 6. To review the list for the
candidate packet, refer to Exhibit 7 To refer to the Affidavit of Filing Officer, refer to Exhibit

3 Attempts to contact Respondent included multiple telephone calls and a questionnaire, mailed to the address on
record. The questionnaire was not returned undeliverable by the post office nor was it returned by Respondent I
also checked several websites but could not find a viable number for Respondent

Inv002 (7/08) 2




15: On-January 16,2015, Respondent filed his statement of candidate form withthe.

filing officer, certifying that he had been provided access to tead and understand the
requirements of Chapter 106, Florida Statutes. To review the statement of candidate form, refer

to Exhibit 9.

Respectfully submitted on January 28, 2016

Mayzie®B. Wade ‘ ’
Investigation Specialist

Douglas Mayorga
11567 SW 6 Street
Sweetwater, Florida 33174

The Honorable O1lando Lopez
10355 SW 3 Street
Sweetwater, Florida 33174

Marie Schmidt
Sweetwater City Clerk

500 SW 109 Avenue
Sweetwater, Florida 33174

Copy furnished to:
David Flagg, Investigations Manager

Inv002 (7/08) 3
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FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION

'REPORT OF INVESTIGATION
Douglas Mayorga -- FEC 15-201

Exhibits #s ‘_ Description of Exhibits
Exhibit 1 Campaign Flyer
Exhibit 2 Palm card
Exhibit 3 Respondent’s Written Response
Exhibit 4 Ad Provided by Respondent
Exhibit 5 Email to Respondent
Exhibit 6 Candidate Elections Calendar
Exhibit 7 Candidate Packet
Exhibit 8 Affidavit of Filing Officer
Exhibit 9 Statement of Candidate
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21 al frente de la cumbre
I8 empresariales en America,
! asuntos comerclales, oportuni-
“dmbito de ia educacion y fa empren-

aformayor.com

Hoy en dia, como Presidente de Camara de Comercio de las Minorias
{CCMY (www.minoritychamber.net), con base en ia ciudad de
Washington DC, ha Hevado a cabo una extraordinaria labor en fa
comunidad del sur de la Florida creando mas de 5,000 negoctos bajo
su asesoria y direccién, v mas de 50,000 empieos mediantes las
ferias de empleos organizada por su entidad desde ei 2000. Hoy en
dfa trae su experiencia empresarial, comunitaria, intergubernamental
y corporativa por el bien de ia ciudadania de Sweetwater, ciudad
incorporada al Condado de Miami Dade County en {a Flonda, los
Estados Unidos de Ameérica. Nuestra campaha es aulenticamente
mndependiente con una piataforma de inteligencia empresaria vy
comunitarta

De la mano de nuestra administracion, la empresa privada y la
comunidad nacional e internacional due son parte de mis relaciones,
sentaremos las bases para que Sweetwater se transforme en una
ciudad a futuro con un potencial at desarrotio industnai,. turistico,
empresarial, educativo, institucionalmente confiable, transparente e
mdependiente; econdOmicamente creciente, productiva y atractiva;
nodo competitivo de desatrrollo tecnolégico, loglstlco y ambientai-
= mente sostenible,

R
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On behalf of my campaign
douglas '

02/23/2015 07:55 PM
Cc:

douglas

Show Details

1 Attachment
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Political advertisement paid for by Douglas Mayorga for Mayor of Sweetwater

February 23, 2014

MS. ERIN RILEY

Deputy Agency Clerk

FLORIDA ELECTION COMISSION
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-1050

Dear Ms. Riley:

Thank you for the opportunity to formally respond fo your request. My campaign
has the highest respect to the Department of Elections and intends to fully
comply with the campaign rules from the State of Florida.

My campaign is still in its early stages and has not yet developed any printed
materials for public use. We have not made yard signs, paim cards, or direct
mailers to publicly distribute. However, my campaigh has made drafts for
possible later campaign materials.

| believe the document that Mr. Orlando Lopez is referring to is one of those
drafts | made a draft flyer and showed it to family and friends to get their
feedback. Regarding the specific document that Mr. Lopez is referring to was one
that | dropped off at the Don Pan bakery with instructions for the clerk to hand to
the manager, who is a friend of mine.

EXHIBIT _3 page~Lg 2
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However, for whatever reason, the flyer was left on the counter area, where |
assume Mr. Lopez spotted it. To reiterate, this was not an ofﬂcnal campalgn
~ communication, but rather a draft meant to be shared privately. '

This campaign is still in the 'early stages and | have no prior experience in

running for office, but | will make sure to respect campaign rules. If you have
further questions, feel free to call me at 786.260.1572 or 786.260.1965

Respecitfully yours,
Douglas Mayorga

Douglas Mayorga for Sweetwater Mayor
11567 SW 6 Street-Miami, FI 33174

EXHIBIT _2 pacz 242
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douglas@mayorgaformayo
www.mayorgaformayor.

Politicial Advertisement paid for and muw..o._\ma a< Uoﬂw_mm 3m<¢..ﬁm... ?n 3w<9. of mﬁmmnimumm. __
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- Politicial Advertisement paid for and approved U%__Uosmmmm_Zm<o..mm.?w Mayor of w&mmnﬁmnm__q.,_
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' Delivery Failure Report

Your

message: FEC 15-201, 15-288 and 15-307

g:lfv';?; dto douglas@mayorgaformayor com

because: 550 5.1 1 <douglas@mayorgaformayor com> Recipient notfound. <http://x cofitbounce>
What should you do?

e You canresend the undeliverable document to the recipients listed above by choosing the Resend button or the
Resend command on the Actions menu,

»  Once you have resent the document you may delete this Delivery Failure Report.
e if resending the document is not successful you will receive a new failure report,

¢ Uniess you receive other Delivery Failure Reports, the document was successfully delivered to all other
recipients.

Routing péth - et e e e e e i e V

TLHO1/OAG, TLHOZ/OAG, TLHOZ/OAG, TILHO1/OAG

To: douglas@mayorgaformayor com
ce:
Date: 10:51:52 AM Today

Subject: FEC 15-201, 15-289 and 15-307
Dear Mr Mayorga,

We have your initial response for FEC 15-201 on file: however, my subsequent attempts to reach you _
have been unsuccessful Now that the investigation is completed | still have a few final questions that are

iisted below

Case 15-201 refers to an advertisement that reads, "VOTE Mayorga for Mayor City of Sweetwater.” The
ad does not contain a disclaimer. You initially stated that the ad provided by Complainant was a draft.

Was the ad ever published? Did you ad a disclaimer before the ad was published? How did you publish
the ad, e g, flyer, newspaper, etc ? Do you have any other comments you would like to make about this

advertisement?

Cases 15-289 and 15-307 refer to a palm card with blue background which was writien in Spanish. The
palm card reads "This 12 May 2015 Vote for Douglas Mayorga Mayor of Sweetwater. " The
advertisement does not contain the word "for” between your name and the office that you were running for.
Why was the word "for" omitted? Did your publish this ad befare or after the advertisement discussed
above? Do you have any additional comments regarding the palm cards?

Please to this email by Tuesday, February 2, 2016

Sincerely,

Wangle & Wade

Investigation Specialist il
Florida Elections Commission

EXHIBIT _5 Page L3 2




. 107 West Gaines Street, Suite 224
Tallahassee, FL 32399 o
850-922-4539 (phone)
850-921-0783 (fax)

EXHIBIT _5 poge 2. 4 2
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CITY OF SWEETWATER
GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION
TUESDAY, MAY 12, 2015

CARDIBATE FLECTION CALEMDAR

Last day to submit resignation to run for office if already serving a term as-an
elected official. Must be submitted tothe City Clerk before 4:30 P. V. this date.

First day candidates may file qualifying papers. Fee for-Commissioner: $75
Qualifying Fee+$376.77 State Assessment, Fee for Mayor: $250 Qnai:fymgFee
+ $1,184.15 State Assessment, Please bring a sepavate chedk from your
campaign account for each fee.

Canpaign Treaswrer's Report G-1 due uo lader thon 4:30 P.M. on this date for
thie period from Mareh 1, 2015 ending Mareh 26, 2015, Late reports will be
assessed 2 fine pursnant to State Law.

Fimal day candidates may file qualifying papers (5:00-P.M. deadline)

mmpmgm ‘§ reRsures's me G2 dium o iaim ﬁmn 4"%Eﬁ | & M on i:hn's date ‘EOI'
be: avssmqed a fim _ggnﬁrguam o sma Law Umpyoscﬁ mndxdates %nﬁl fot bae
subject to this or the remainder of the reperting peviods and will have 90 days
from the ¢lose of the qmﬁniymg pemod to present their final repm'ts

4/13

424

4/28

b, ot "
. kg TR g

Vﬂter teglstratmu books cluse anyone who wgasters as a mew vote! after tlns
date will be ineligible to vote in the May 12th election.

Campaign Tressurer’s Report (-5 due ne lzier than 4038 P.M. on this date for

the period from April 4, 2015 and ending Apyil 17, 2015, Late veports will be

assessed a fine puwreswant ic Btate Law,

Last day eandidates may desipuate poll watehers. Candidate’sHist st be i the.

affice of the City Clevk ne Iater than 12:00 Moo this date,

EXHIBIT __( pageld2—
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517 Camp "%%gj&.b@ﬁ’ﬁ’iﬁﬂegiﬂﬁﬁ can ue longer be seeepted after midnight
;€§s§:,s
815 Campatgo Tressurer’s Bepovt G4 due ns Jater than 4038 PV ol this date for

the period from A E 18, 2074 and endivg miduioli Moy 7, 2615, Latereports
will be avsessed 2 flwe wursuant to State Law,

&4 FLECTION DAY - Polls open from 7:06 AN, to 7:00 P10,
B AdE politioal sigres of candidaies vimst Be rewoved by candidete or sign Dond will

be torteifed aud signs will be vemoved by City crews, Hxeeption is for eandidates
in yenelt doction.

5026 RUNOFE ELECTION DAY i 2 raneft s reguired.
6/ Politicut signs of ronoff csndidates st be romeved by candidate orsign bond

will be forfeited and signs will be remeved by Cily crevws,

819 Fiual Report eonvering the period from BMay 8 fo the datd of teripinating
commpaien acceunt rown due (Wo later thaw 3 deys alter dections)

Kdrdelehded e B RA A hET by

Candidate Campaigs Handbook and State KEleetion Laws can be accessed, downloaded and
printed at htipdlelection.dos.state fl.us/publications/index shiim]

S‘hauﬁd ﬂi&%‘é‘éﬁ s:.m% tﬁme in this f-aﬁénmm «‘:h' u;*e @ach w;.,is fered eandidate will be notified

Logie and Accuracy festing of the voting equipment is performed by Minmi-Dade County
Elections. As soen as the dates are available, you will be notified clectromically.

Canvassing Board meetings bave not been schedubed vet. Assoon as the dates ave set, you will
be notified clectromically.

2
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City of Sweetwater

MARCH 16, 2013

DOCUMENTS RECEIVED BY CANDIDATE:

1~  CANDIDATES INFORMATION FOR 2015 ELECTION
2-  CANDIDATE ELECTION CALENDAR
3-  CANDIDATE OATHS
4-  AFFIDAVIT OF CANDIDATE

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 2014
6-  POLL WATCHER DESIGNATION INSTRUCTION AND FORM
7-  ETHICAL CAMPAIGN PRACTICES ORDINANCE |

8- SIGNS _R}EG’{HATION ORDINANCE

RECEIVED BY:
)

S ! "
o . e

e e e ASIGNATURE)- .-

DATE

| = |
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FFIDAVIT OF FILING OFFICER

1. Please provide certified copies of the: listed items from the following candidate’s
campaxgn file: Dounglas Mayorga

v | 'The Statement of Candidate form for 2015

v | Appoiiitments of Treasirérs and Desighation of Cariptigh Depository fort for2015.

v | Statements of financial interest (Form 1 and Form 6) for 2015,

2. Please ¢heck each-item provided to the candidate or his or her staff, and list the date that
the 1tem was pmv ded, {If the item is pubhshe& by the Dmswn o’i‘ E!ectinns, 1t

Chap‘tet 194 Flor _da Staxwes

| Candidate Handbodk Please indicate Year

| Political ad and disclaimer supplement

Calendar of Election dates.

Any other eleetmn related doeument, Please indicate the title of

| the related dooxmient: /37 /7) Dyl T = (n/DUE SHEY

; HIRTEE ’5”7/0”@’9-*8@.;,)
..'3.-,..— Please hst all other mtten matenals pxewded to the candzdate ot Ius ot hex staff 'the _g;g '

4 Please list all training seminars that were attended by the candidate, along with the date :
of attendance. If'a staff member aftended for the candidate; Jist his name and position. K

available, please attach a copy of any attenddnce sheets from the seminar(s).

M IE
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5. Please list the subjects covered during these seminars. If available, please provide a copy
of the syllabus and outline for the seminar.

ﬁ/f—?

i,

6. Please list any other contacts with this candidate by you or your staff concerning a-

provision of Chapter 104, Section 105.071, or Chapter 106, Floridu Statuies. Tndicats ‘Whether
the contact was in person, inwiiting, or by telephone and the subject matter of the coxitact. Also,
provide copies.of any documentation of the contact. Please provide a sepatate affidavit from any
member of your staff who was in contact with. this candidate or his or her staff; defailing the
subject matter of the contact.

Please list each year the candidate ran for office, the office the candidate ran-fo; the dates
0{ the e ﬁ,wn d the resulis of the elections.

& KRR FoR SAYCL. LoOST,

1 o i e . e © s,

il i AR i sy g
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T SWEAR OR AVFIRM THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS POCUMENT IS COMPLETE
ANDACCURATE 1O THE BEST OF MY WOWLEBGE. : .

Pt Cf e..«a/ MMM

*Signature of Affiant

Swotn 1o (or-affinned) and subscribed before me thi_s",f f ayof
:S%R :W&,c;m»{
.

,w—'“" })
( st I | -
Signatum of Notary Public #State of Florida
Print, Type, or\"igglu TR B

i,
L

N Notaty Filifs < State-of Flomla
£ cnmmlasion # P2,

Personally Known -5//

I'vpe-of identification Produced:

Case Investigator: MBW

XHIBIT 8
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o | OFFIGE USE ONLY |
STATEMENT OF N
CANDIDATE
(Bection 106.023, FS.)
{Please print or type)
T BOUGIRS EJIEGR . I
candidate for the office of npyeg . sosETWaER, O, ;
have been provided access fo read and undérstand the requirements of
Chapter 106, Florida Statutes.
\‘"--.. Q—- e
"‘"""-"--.-.n.‘...._._...‘....~--_--7 _./""/
_ - T N e
X e e N Ol 52015 i
~ Signature of Gandidate Date

HAppeiniment-of Campaign Treasurer and Designation of Campaign Depository is filed. WWifffual

Fach candidate must file a statement with the qualifying officer within 10 days after the |

failure fo file this form is a first degree misdemeanor and a civil viofation of the Campaign
Financing Act which may result in a fine of up to $1,000, (ss. 106.19(1){(c), 106.265(1), Flotida

Statuies)

DS-DE 84 (05/11)

EXHIBIT ___ 7




Page 1 of 1

Douglas Mayorga

Trelvis D Randolph

to: R o
fec@myfloridalegal com
04/14/2015 01:36 PM
Show Details

1 Attachment

image7d44cf PNG

I am writing to state my notice of appearance as counsel on behalf of Douglas Mayorga for the following
matters:

Case #15-201;

Case #15-289

Case #15-307

Sincerely
Trelvis D. Randolph

Trelvis D. Randolph, Esq.

Trelvis Randolph@csklegal com ,
Tel: 305-350-5332 '
Fax: 305-373-2294

Cole, Scott & Kissane Building

9150 South Dadeland Boulevard, Suite 1400 |
Miami, Florida 33156

www.csklegal com

Confidentiality Notice: This communication is covered by the Electionic Communications Privacy Act, I8 U.S.C. §§
2510-2521 It is legaily privileged (including attachments) and is intended only for the use of the individuai(s) or entity
(ics) to which it is addressed 1t may contain information that is conflidential, proprictary, privileged, and/or exempt
from disclosure under applicable law. Any review, retransmission, dissenination or other use of, or taking of anmy
action in reliance upon this information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is strictly prohibited.
If you have received this communication in error, please notify us so that we may take the appropriate action and
avoid troubling you further. H you are not the intended recipient(s), please destroy this message, and any
attachments, and notify the sender by return e-mail. Thank you for vour cooperation.

|
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FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION
107 W, Gaines Street
Collins Building, Suite 224
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1650
(850) 922-4539

April 9, 2015

Doulas Mayorga
11567 SW. 6 Street
Sweetwater, FL 33174

RE: Case No.: FEC 15-201: Respondent: Douglas Mayorga
Dear Mr. Mayorga:

The Florida Elections Commission has received a complaint alleging that you, the
Respondent, have violated Section 106 143(1)(a), Florida Statutes, on one occasion. A copy of
the complaint was previously provided to you.

Rule 2B-1 003, Florida Administiative Code, provides fot resolving certain cases by a
consent order before investigation commences Under the rule, an alleged violation of Chapter
106 will be considered a minor violation if the following criteria are met:

(1) The violation is one identified in the rule;

(2) It is the first time the person is alleged to have committed the
violation;

(3) The person agrees to correct the conduct that resulted in the
violation, if feasible; and

(4) When a violation involves political advertising, the person must
be named in the political advertisement and the complainant must
not allege that the advertising was either deceptive or influenced
the outcome of the election if the violation occurred less than 14
days before the election

This case meets the criteria set forth above. Therefore, the procedures of the Commission
allow you one of two options at this junctuze. You may either, (1) enter into a consent order with
the Commission staff and pay a small fine, rather than the potential $1,000 per violation
provided for in Section 106 265, Florida Statutes, or (2) not enter into a consent otder, in which
case the statf will proceed to investigate the allegations in the complaint The consent order
provides that the Respondent neither admits not denies the allegation(s) in the complaint, and
requires the Respondent immediately to correct the violation, if feasible, and to avoid future
violations. The consent order does not constitute final action by the Commission until it is
accepted and approved by the Commission

C_o007 (9/09)
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If you choose to resolve this case without an investigation and possible hearing, please

sign and return the enclosed consent order, together with payment of the- specified fine, within 20 - - -

days of the date you receive this letter Payment of the fine must be by either cashier’s check or

other certified funds. The signed consent order will then be considered by the Commission at its
next available meeting. If the staff does not receive the signed consent order and the fine within
20 days, staff withdraws this offer of settlement and will proceed to mvestlg_te the allegations in

the complaint.

If you choose to proceed with the investigation, the Commission staff will investigate the
following statutoty provision:

Section 106.143(1)(a), Florida Statutes: As alleged in the
complaint, Douglas Mayorga, candidate for Mayor of the City of
Sweetwater, distributed a political advertisement that contained
express advocacy but did not include a proper disclaimer.

You may respond to the violation alleged in the complaint by filing a notarized statement
providing any information regarding the facts and cir¢umstances surrounding the allegation. If
you choose to file a 1esponse to the complaint, you should file the response within 20 days of the
date you receive this letter. Your response will be mcluded as an attachment to the investigator’s

teport.

Section 106 25, Florida Statutes, provides that when the investigator completes his o1 her
report, staff will mail you a copy of the investigator’s report. Should you choose to file a
1esponse to the report, you must file your response with the Commigsion within 15 days of the
date of this letter. If your response is timely filed, the Commission will consider it when
determining probable cause.

Commission staff will teview the Report of Investigation and make a written
recommendation to the Commission on whether there is probable cause to charge you with
violating Chapter 104 ox 106, Florida Statutes. You will teceive a copy of this staff
recommendation and will have the opportunity to file a response  Should you choose to do so,
your response must be filed with the Commission within 15 days of the date the recommendation
is mailed to you If your response is timely filed, the Commission will consider it when
determining probable cause.

The Commission will hold a hearing to determine whether there is probable cause to
charge you with a violation You will receive a notice of hearing at least 14 days before the
hearing. The notice of hearing will indicate the location, date, and time of your hearing If you
attend the hearing, you will be permitted to make a brief oral statement to the Commission, but
you cannot testify ox call others to testify, or introduce any documentary orx other evidence

The staff recommendation and the notice of the probable cause hearing will be mailed to
the same address as this letter. Therefore, if your addiess changes, you must notify the
Commission of your new address. Otherwise, you may not receive the correspondence from the
Commission staff Failute to receive the documents will not delay the probable cause hearing.

Under section 106 25, Florida Statutes, complaints, Commission investigations,
investigative reports, and other documents 1elating to an alleged violation of Chapters 104 and
106, Florida Statutes, are confidential until the Commission finds probable cause or no probable
cause. A bieach of confidentiality is a c1iminal violation of the law. The confidentiality




Page 3 . \

provision does not apply to the person filing the complaint. However, it does apply to you, the
“Respondent, unless you waive confidentiality in writing.- The confidentiality provision does not
preclude you fiom seeking legal counsel. However, if you retain counsel, your attorney must file
anotice of appearance with the Commission before any member of the Commission staff can
discuss this case with him or her

If you have any questions, please contact David Flagg, at extension 111, or at the address
listed above

/

Amy Mcl%v 1 Tomj\

Executive ctor

Sincerely,

Encloswtes:  Consent Order
AMT/em
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~ On behalf of my campaign
. douglas

to: ..

fec

02/23/2015 07:55 PM

Ce:

douglas

Show Details

1 Attachment

et

image001.png

Political advertisemetpard for by Douglas Mayorga for Mayor of Sweetwater

February 23, 2014

MS. ERIN RILEY

Deputy Agency Clerk

FLORIDA ELECTION COMISSION
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-1050

Dear Ms. Riley:

Thank you for the opportunity to formally respond to your request. My campaign
has the highest respect to the Department of Elections and intends to fully
comply with the campaign rules from the State of Florida.

My campaign is still in its early stages and has not yet developed any printed
materials ior public use. We have not made yard signs, paim cards, or direct
mailers to publicly distribute. However, my campaign has made drafts for
possible later campaign materials.

| believe the document that Mr. Orlando Lopez is referring to is one of those
drafts. | made a draft flyer and showed it to family and friends to get their
feedback. Regarding the specific document that Mr. Lopez is referring to was one
that | dropped off at the Don Pan bakery with instructions for the clerk to hand to
the:manager, who is a friend of mine.

file:///C:/Users/Malphursd/AppData/L ocal/Temp/noteskF CBCEE/~web9745 htm 2/23/2015
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However, for whatever reason, the flyer was left on the counter area, where |
assume Mr. Lopez spotted it To reiterate, this was not an official campaign
communication, but rather a draft meant to be shared privately.

This campaign is still in the early stages and | have no prior experience in
running for office, but | will make sure to respect campaign rules. If you have
further questions, feel free to call me at 786.260.1572 or 786.260.1965.
Respectfully yours,

Douglas Mayorga

Douglas Mayorga for Sweetwater Mayor
11567 SW 6 Street-Miami, Fl 33174

file:///C:/Users/Malphursd/AppData/L ocal/Temp/notesFCBCEE/~web9745 htm 2/23/2015




STATE OF FLORIDA

FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION RECEIVED
" 107 West Gaines Street, Suite 224, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050 bl
Telephone Number: {850) 922-4539 W5 o
www.fec.state.fl.us £ ros -2 S L5

CONFIDENTIAL COMPLAINT FORM ..

The Commission’s records and proceedings in a case are confidential until the Commxslsfmr l{ufwbmpyqba};!gff'g i
cause. A copy of the complaint will be provided to the person against whom the complaint is broaght. :

o BRI o
=

1. PERSON BRINGING COMPLAINT:

Name: Orlando Lopez Work Phone: ( 305 ) 389-3200
Address: 10355 SW 3 Street Home Phone: ()
City: Sweetwater County: Miami-Dade  gyaee. FL Zip Code; 33174

2. PERSON AGAINST WHOM COMPLAINT IS BROUGHT:

A person can be an individual, political committee, committee of continuous existence, political party,
electioneering communication organization, club, corporation, partnership, company, association, o1 amny
other type of organization. (If you intend to narne more than one 1nd1v1dual o1 entity, please file multiple

complaints.)

Name of individual or entity: Bouglas Mayorga
Address: 11967 SW 6 Street Phone: (7861 260-1965

City: Sweetwater County: Miami-Dade  gyaee. Florida 75 coge; 33174

If individual is a candidate, list the office or position sought: Mayor

Have you filed this complaint with the State Attorney’s Office? (checkone) [ ] Yes No

3. ALLEGED VIOLATION(S):

Please list the provisions of The Florida Election Code that you believe the person named above may have
violated The Commission has jurisdiction only to investigation the following provisions: Chapter 104,
Chapter 106, and Section 105.071, Florida Statutes. Also, please include:

v The facts and actions that you believe support the violations you allege,

v The names and telephone numbers of persons you believe may be witnesses to the facts,
v A copy or picture of the political advertisements you mention in your statement,

v A copy of the documents you mention in your statement, and

v Other evidence that supports your allegations

Douglas Mayorga filed as a candidate on Friday, January 16, 2015 with the City's Clerk at 3:22 pm.
1 - Before filing his papers with the City Clerk as a candidate, Mayorga was distributing campaign flyers.

2 - The campaign flyer (see attachment) did not contain the paid political advertising disclaimer.

FEC 002 (Rev 05-05-14)




4. OATH

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF ézm Q&dg

Additional materials attached (check one)? [/IYes [ JNo

I swear or affirm, that the above information is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

il
o

aqiy re

Original Signature oferson Bringing Complaint

Swom.to and subscribed before me this J 2 day of

anuary 20 /4"
-7

or Notary public

SSIESG,  BELKYS DE ARMAS

i ﬂ % Notary Public - State of Florida
§ 2ol JIE »/ & My Comm. Expires Jul 24, 2018
“hgrives  Commission # EE 81413

(Print Type otap omissoned ame of Notary rFubllc)
Personally known l/(')r Produced Identification

Type of Identification Produced

Any petson who files 2 complaint while knowing that the allegations are false or without merit commits a
misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in Sections 775 082 and 775 083, Flotida Statutes

FEC 002 (Rev 05-05-14)




16 Jinp 3 22
RECEIVED JAN 16 7015

APPOINTMENT OF CAMPAIGN TREASURER ( Vi
AND DESIGNATION OF CAMPAIGN

DEPOSITORY FOR CANDIDATES
(Section 106.021(1), F.S.)

{PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE)

NOTE: This form must be on file with the qua'!ify!ﬁg
officer before opening the campaign account,

1. CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX(ES):

|4 initial Eifing of Eomn ——Resfling to Change: [} TreasuredDeputy [T} Depository [T Office [ Party

OFFICE USE ONLY

2. Name of Candidate (in this order: First, Middle, Last} 3. Address {include post office box or street, cily, state, zip
code)
cUG LAl A
PDouve : MBI GA "t 7 SW o ST
4, Telephone 5. E-mail address ! pMrarnly Efo D3 7f£

(186) 260 - 1965 doufjczs@mgﬁoﬁmfwmﬂjri;&m

8. Office sought (include disfrict, circuit, group number) 7. if a eandidate for a nonpartisan office, check
, applicable:
MPANY O R, _ [[] Myintentis to run as a Write-n candidate,

8. If a candidate for a partisan office, check bioci( and fill in name of party as applicable: My intenfis to run asa
D Write-in [:I No Party Affiliation i1 Revu @t CM : Party candidate.

9. | bave appointed the following person to act as my E Campaign Treasurer [ ]  Deputy Treasurer

10. Name of Treasurer or Deputy Treasurer

Maeia Loatsiea
11. Mailing Address

12. Telephone
(786 Y2k~ /57 2

US 675w 3T,

13. City 14, County 15, State 16. Zip Code { 17. E-mail address
PMEAYA) # RADe F 23174 frmwf?femwﬂgﬁ-fwmﬂ%ﬂf ’
18. | have designated the following bankasmy . E;] Primary Depository ['_'] Secondary Deposutory
18. Name of Bank . 20. Address
CITLBAMIL 7795w . PlaGlg ¢,
21. City 22. County 23, State 24. Zip Code
MiAMI DACE Fi 324y

UNDER PENALTIES OF PERJURY, | DECLARE THAT | HAVE READ THE FOREGOING FORM FOR APPOINTMENT OF CAMPAIGN TREASURER AND
DESIGNATION OF CAMPAIGN DEPOSITORY AND THAT THE FACTS STATED IN IT ARE TRUE.

25. Date ' 26. Signature of Candidate —_
fg ceon o 15 LOVS x T—> —
T /
Treasurer’s Accepf:ance of Appointment (fll in the‘ganks and check the apprOpnate block)
o Maia Lgﬁ,; il A , do hereby accept the appointment
{Please Print or Type Name) §
designated above as: E Carnpaign Treasurer {] Deputy Treasurer.
pl-i5- 2015 X Nt fopeaioa
Date _signanire of Campaign Treastfer or Deputy Treasurer
Rule 15-2.0001, FEAC. — . ...

DS-DE 9{Revs10110)—~———




RECEIVED JAN 18 2015

T }
AN 15 dtip 3 22
\
OFFICE USE ONLY
~-STATEMENT OF
CANDIDATE
(Section 106.023, F.S.)
(Please print or type)
I BOUGIRS  AYIEGK ,

candidate for the office of mAver. . S ZETWATER , Fi, :
f

have been provided access to read and undérstand the requirements of

Chapter 106, Florida Statutes.

S <
~—— / //
\ . - ~— ~ -"“,..-/
X - 7 ol i15-2015
~~Signature of Sandidate Date

Each candidate must file a statement with the qualifying officer within 10 days after the
Appointment of Campaign Treasurer and Designation of Campaign Depository is filed. Willful
failure to file this form is a first degree misdemeanor and a civil violation of the Campaign
Financing Act which may result in a fine of up fo $1,000, (ss. 106.19(1)(c), 106.265(1), Florida

Statutes).

DS-DE 84 (05/11)







Hoy en dia, como Presidente de Camara de Comercio de las Minorias
1 (CCM) (www.minositychamber.net), con base en la ciudad de
de Washington DC, ha lievado a cabo una extraordinara labor en la
comunidad del sur de la Florida creando mas de 5,000 negocios bajo
su asesoria y direccion, y mas de 50,000 empleos mediantes las
_ ferias de empleos organizada por su entidad desde el 2000. Hoy en
: '?”i")adre de 4 0s0s hijos va todos dia trae su experiencia empresanal, comunitaria, intergubernamental
ta %‘ al frente de la cumbre y corporativa por el bien de la ciudadania de Sweetwater, ciudad
fofia incorporada al Condado de Miami Dade County en la- Florida,
Estados Unidos de América. Nuestra campana es autenticamente

am_blt_ de la. educacmnyla empren- mdependlente con una plataforma de .inteligencia empresaria y
€s local como nternacional. " comunitaria

>ORQUE NUESTRA mmmm‘mm A

De la mano de nuestra administracién, ta empresa privada y la
comunidad naciona! e internacional que son parte de mis relaciones,
sentaremos las hases para que Sweetwater se transforme en una
cludad a futuro con un potencial al desarroilo Industrial, turistico,
empresarial, educativo, nstitucionalmente conflable transparente e
independiente; econémicamente creciente, productwa v atract;va-
nodo competitivo de desarrollo tecnoldgico, Ioglsttco ¥y amblental-
mente sostenible.

gente hu
conocidos
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